
EUGENE WATER & ELECTRIC BOARD 

 WORK SESSION 

 EWEB BOARD ROOM 

500 EAST 4
TH

 AVENUE 

 MAY 5, 2009 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 

Commissioners present: Ron Farmer, John Brown, Bob Cassidy, Rich Cunningham, and 

Joann Ernst.   

 

Others Present: Randy Berggren, Sheila Crawford, Dick Helgeson, Patty Boyle, Lance 

Robertson, Tom Buckhouse, Jim Wiley, Jim Origliosso, Jeannine Parisi, Dean Ahlsten, Debra Smith, 

Susan Eicher, Brenda Sirois, Garilyn Johnston, and Krista Hince of the EWEB staff; Ruth 

Atcherson, City of Eugene minutes recorder. 

 

President Farmer convened the work session of the Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB). 

    

 

General Manager Randy Berggren highlighted the 2009 GM Goals – 1
st
 Quarter Status 

Report.  He noted that Goal 5 had been revised to reflect the direction to review all budgeted work 

and to set priorities for budget reductions, per the Strategic Planning Retreat that had been held in 

March.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked for more information regarding Items (c) and (e) under Goal 1, 

which had to do with water supply strategies.  Mr. Berggren explained, regarding (c), which as part 

of its work to find an alternates source for water, EWEB had involved trying to work with the 

Springfield Utility Board (SUB) to create a partnership in a potential new treatment plant. He said 

SUB had water rights on the Willamette River and an existing treatment plant. In looking at the 

economics and feasibility for a joint facility, he stated that it was intended to serve as a primary 

resource for SUB and a secondary resource for EWEB. He related that they had been working with 

SUB on this for approximately 18 months.   

 

Regarding (e), Mr. Berggren stated that part of the work going forward relative to issues of 

future policy as EWEB continued to try to expand its wholesale supply initiative, would be to utilize 

a wholesale power template to identify policy issues that should be addressed in any contract relative 

to wholesale supply. He said EWEB had three existing wholesale contracts that EWEB planned to 

use the template for as a test, including the River Road Water District and the Santa Clara Water 

District. He thought this would show what kind of policy issues existed and to call out policy issues 

that needed to be addressed.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked Mr. Berggren to elaborate on Goal 4 (a), which called for 

completion of a study for the remaining 78 customer facilities utilizing the steam system along with 

estimating the cost to convert to alternate fuels. Mr. Berggren replied that staff continued to conduct 

detailed analysis on the steam line. He noted that some customers were moving forward and staff 

was monitoring them and trying to evaluate the impacts of what they were doing. He said staff 

wanted to look at critical steam lines that were on the perimeter of the system and that were highly 

inefficient, making them the candidates that EWEB would want to decommission in order to 

improve the efficiency of the system.   



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 2 

 

 

 

In response to a question from Commissioner Cassidy regarding (e)(2) under 1
st
 Quarter 

Results – Goal 4, Mr. Berggren said everyone agreed that shutting down the steam plant within three 

years was better than taking five years to do so. He underscored that they would shut the system 

down as fast as possible. He explained that staff was still trying to identify funding sources and what 

it would take to help customers get off the system.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked for more of an explanation of (b) under 1
st
 Quarter Results – 

Goal 5 Revised. Mr. Berggren clarified that staff had identified an initial goal of reducing 2009 

expenses by $2 million, but staff had also identified other critical work that had not been adequately 

budgeted, at a cost of $2.5 million. He was working with $3.5 million in reductions, $1.5 million of 

which would be taken from resources and redeployed to more critical work such as the North 

American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) compliance. He stated that staff would take $2 

million as an actual savings, as a “down payment” on a three-year budget management strategy that 

aimed to avoid taking a rate action in 2010 for 2011.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked if EWEB was anticipating a surplus in the coming budget.  

Mr. Berggren replied that it would only “barely” be a surplus. Currently, the surplus revenue was 

estimated at $3 million altogether, leaving the budget $1.5 million short though it was still $3 million 

over the cost requirement. He explained that this was because they had budgeted the surplus revenue. 

 

In response to a question from Commissioner Ernst, Mr. Berggren confirmed that the contract 

with Peace Health assured that EWEB would run its steam plant for three years. He considered it to 

be a standard contract and Peace Health, as EWEB’s biggest steam customer, had given EWEB some 

ability to spread remaining fixed costs so that it would create more cost stability for the rest of the 

customers. 

 

Vice President Brown said the State and Junction City had been talking about the provision 

of water to the new hospital facility. He had heard they were looking at taking water from the Long 

Tom River. He wondered why they were not talking with EWEB, noting that this could benefit 

EWEB by helping to further perfect EWEB’s existing water rights. Mr. Berggren responded that staff 

had spoken with the Mayor of Junction City. He thought the situation could merit “one more knock 

on the door” to ask if Junction City had fully considered costs. He could not imagine that the 

economics of the project would not favor EWEB. Water & Steam Division Director Tom Buckhouse 

added that Junction City was aware that EWEB had the capability to provide water. 

 

President Farmer suggested having a politician and not a technician make contact in Junction 

City. He felt they needed a strategic plan to do it. Mr. Berggren responded that the politics of 

Junction City seemed fairly closed. He suggested that staff discuss this and come up with a strategic 

step to recommend to the Board to ensure Junction City’s engagement in the discussion. 

 



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 3 

 

 

Commissioner Cunningham said he would like to have the General Manager write a one-page 

description of the type of person that could carry on the legacy of EWEB after Mr. Berggren’s 

retirement.   

 

President Farmer observed that in looking at Goal 2, (c), (d), and (e) indicated only that they 

were pending. He asked whether the General Manager was confident of EWEB’s ability to meet the 

deadline associated with the Headquarters Master Planning process. Mr. Berggren replied that he was 

not certain because he did not know how the Board would choose to vote. President Farmer 

remarked that the deadlines seemed tight. Mr. Berggren concurred. 

 

President Farmer understood that EWEB had identified some sources to help with the steam 

transition. He said with budgets coming at the current levels and with drastic cutbacks that the State 

and other jurisdictions were making, he asked if there was any sense as to whether the areas for 

possible funding resources were at risk. Mr. Berggren replied that staff would not say that it was at 

risk at this point, but the work different entities had to do to gain access to the stimulus money  had 

gotten in the way for most of the institutions that were working the programs EWEB was seeking 

access to. He said the Oregon Department of Energy (ODOE) had been occupied with sorting 

through applications for stimulus funding; EWEB was a little behind from when it expected to hear 

from ODOE regarding the programs it was interested in. He said EWEB was proceeding with the 

Request for Proposals (RFP) at this point because of a need to get a sense of what it would cost. He 

noted that if EWEB did not receive stimulus money or if the State decided that its loan program did 

not work, EWEB would be facing a funding source issue again.   

 

Employee, Customer, & Community Services Division Director Debra Smith related that 

Power Resources Division Director Dick Helgeson and Water & Steam Division DirectorTom 

Buckhouse had been working on an alternative scenario that would deploy some internal resources to 

“jump start” the process. She said they were seeing that customers who were remaining in a strong 

financial condition were moving off the system. She underscored that this increased the need to stay 

in front of the issue.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked how many customers had “dropped off” from the steam utility 

since the last update. Ms. Smith replied that the Eugene Hotel and Summit Bank had moved off from 

the system. She said at this point staff thought they could bridge the gap by taking some capacity in 

Energy Management Services. 

 

Commissioner Cassidy asked where the tipping point would lie. Mr. Berggren replied that he 

did not believe the steam customers would all be able to move from the system within three years.  

He believed that EWEB would be “challenged the whole way.”  He said until the specific funding 

was lined up and identified that would close out the last customer, there would be uncertainty about 

when the last customer would be of the system.   

 



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 4 

 

 

Vice President Brown asked where the County Jail fell in the range of customer size. 

Mr. Buckhouse replied that the jail was one of the smaller public buildings, but it still represented a 

fairly significant load. 

 

Vice President Brown asked how much it would cost to renovate the headquarters building.  

Ms. Smith responded that staff would have access to that numbers at the next meeting. She said the 

thing that they wanted to do in the short-term would be to have an updated view of the system with a 

study that would allow EWEB to identify the peripheral customers who were the most expensive. 

She stated that the goal would be to get at least some customers moved off the system by the next 

heating season. She estimated that number to be between five and ten of them. 

 

In response to a follow-up question from Vice President Brown, Ms. Smith stated that there 

was approximately $400,000 total in the budget for the conversion, $100,000 for the boiler 

conversion and $300,000 for study.   

 

Ms. Smith summarized the situation. She said EWEB had budgeted some money and had 

been waiting for ODOE to respond to issue the RFP, but had decided to go ahead and issue the RFP. 

She noted that Key Accounts Manager Mike Logan had his time diverted into working to get 

stimulus money so the process had been slowed both on EWEB’s end and on the end at ODOE. She 

related that this activity had slowed down and Mr. Logan could return his energies to the steam 

utility. 

 

 

Senior Financial Analyst Susan Eicher provided an overview of the First Quarter Financial 

Statements with power points. She stressed that the first quarter of the year was “neither very 

optimistic nor very pessimistic.” She said things were still developing, though they were still 

projecting the end of the year contribution margin to be somewhat under budget.   

 

Commissioner Cassidy observed that the budget had been based on an 85 percent hydro 

assumption but was running on a 92 percent of normal hydro year. He asked if EWEB was now 

basing its budget on the 92 percent level. Ms. Eicher assured him that the budget process had not 

changed from the 85 percent assumption. She added that one reason they believed the contribution 

margin to be slightly under the budget was because, though the hydro year was above 85 percent, 

prices were very low.   

 

Ms. Eicher reported that the working cash was still in “pretty good shape,” though it was still 

under the $15 million target. She expected it to be at $15 million once the month of April was 

closed. She reviewed the reserve funds, noting that the Carmen-Smith Reserve had been replenished. 

She stated that the biggest differences between March, 2009, and March, 2008, were due to the 

closure of Hynix and the issuance of rebates. She said all classes of customers were showing some 

decrease in consumption compared to the previous year. 

 



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 5 

 

 

President Farmer asked if this automatically caused the Contribution In Lieu of Tax (CILT) to 

go up. Ms. Eicher replied that whatever power EWEB did not need could automatically be placed on 

the market for sale. She said at present the prices were low and EWEB was not benefiting from it as 

much as it did previously. She added that EWEB was still above the contribution margin by $1.1 

million. 

 

Ms. Eicher reported that the difference between the net operating revenue and the net revenue 

had to do with changes in the other revenues and expenses, one of which was attributed to a 

significant decrease in the yields of the reserve accounts; interest rates were down to 1 percent. She 

predicted that this would not change soon. 

 

Ms. Eicher related that staff projected a negative variance of approximately $1.5 million at 

the end of the year for the electric utility. 

 

President Farmer asked if the budget comparison number included the transfer that had been 

made out of reserves for the Customer Care Program. Ms. Eicher replied that she had backed out the 

effects of the program, because they had not been budgeted.   

 

President Farmer surmised that the contribution margin was actually $700,000. Ms. Eicher 

responded that generally the utility did not pass budget amendments for contribution margin or 

revenue items. President Farmer commented that this made things sound “rosier” than they actually 

were.   

 

Ms. Eicher stated that the capital budget projection did not include budget variances or 

amendments. She explained that as the budget amendments were passed and the variances were 

better known, they would come up in future reports.   

 

Regarding the net operating budget, Ms. Eicher reported that it was a little under from what 

would normally be expected. She said staff was continuing to look for ways to save money. 

 

Ms. Eicher attributed the increased net operating revenues for the water utility to the rate 

increases.   

 

Commissioner Cunningham ascertained from Ms. Eicher that the water utility’s revenue was 

down. Ms. Eicher explained that it would be down by a greater amount without the rate increases.   

 

Ms. Eicher stated that they were continuing to watch the economy closely. She related that 

they had yet to see a forecast indicating that things were starting to go back up in the current year. 

She said they were monitoring the credit markets, because the budget called for the issuance of 

bonds. This was still under development. She added that they were working on a line of credit for the 

Harvest Wind project. 

 



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 6 

 

 

In response to a question from Vice President Brown, Ms. Eicher said it was her 

understanding that EWEB might have to increase the budget for Harvest Wind to up to $50 million.   

 

Power Management and Planning Manager Dick Varner stated that originally EWEB was 

looking for a construction lender, which would have meant that EWEB would have been investing 

$15 to $20 million and then EWEB would buy out when the project was completed. He said that 

market was not available at this point. He related that at present each utility intended to fund, through 

commercial operation, their share of the cost, and then they would seek a tax owner to come in and 

buy the project and commercial operation. He explained that the utilities would then do their pre-

purchase of power for their share of the cost. He reported that the current forecast was that EWEB’s 

share would be approximately $46 million to commercial operation, currently estimated to be in the 

first weeks of December. He said they were anticipating that a consortium of tax owners would bring 

between $100 and $120 million to the table in order to pay for approximately half of the cost of the 

facility. He expected that by the end of the year EWEB would be down to $23 to $25 million in the 

project. He added that staff planned to bring the item to the Board on June 2 for an update and they 

planned to prepare a complete backgrounder that would lay out all of the financing “permutations.”   

 

Commissioner Ernst recalled that staff had discussed that the partners in Harvest Wind were 

having problems gaining funding. Mr. Varner replied that at this point there were no indications from 

anyone that they were having difficulty coming up with their share of the funds.   

 

Mr. Berggren said part of the reason the contribution margin continued to be close to the 

budgeted amount was due to the hedging program, which he attributed to the power risk management 

guidelines. He explained that every year EWEB hedged two years ahead at 85 percent or below with 

“puts,” in which EWEB had the right but not the obligation to place a unit of power on the market.  

He related that two weeks earlier these “puts” were valued at an amount in excess of $5 million, 

which would be a savings on the bottom line. He noted that the Snohomish Public Utility District 

(PUD) had a 25 megawatt hour (MWH) unit with EWEB at $100 per MWH in a market in which a 

MWH was being sold for $27.   

 

In response to a question from President Farmer, Mr. Berggren stated that the purchased 

power was $17.1 million over budget. Ms. Eicher added that EWEB was better than budget on 

wholesale sales but was worse than budget on purchased power. She said what the Board was seeing 

was part of the difficulty staff was having in forecasting and budgeting for what the actual power 

sales would be.   

 

President Farmer asked if staff predicted that the drop in retail sales would be felt after the 

end of the present year. Mr. Berggren affirmed that EWEB would be “up against it” in 2010.   

 



Work Session 

May 5, 2009 

Page 7 

 

 

Commissioner Ernst asked if EWEB was hedging two years ahead on an ongoing basis. 

Mr. Berggren said that was the practice, but in the present year EWEB had been conditioned on the 

ability to hedge because of credit constraints and very high markets. He explained that the markets 

were requiring anywhere from 10 to 15 percent of the value of the deal for the cost of the premium of 

the insurance. He related that EWEB had run out of hedging partners who actually were credit-

worthy enough to do the hedging. He said the 2009/2010 hedging was not completed.   

 

In response to a question from President Farmer, Mr. Varner said there was a significant 

difference between the prices in 2009 and 2010 and 2011. He related that the 2009 prices per MWH 

were in the mid-$30s, 2010 prices were in the mid-$40s, and 2011 could be in the low $50s. He 

underscored that there was a significant difference in the forward curves and “how steeply it comes 

back.” He added that EWEB did not want to be in the position where, if the market crashed and 

stayed down for 2010 or 2011, it had to sell in a $30 market.   

 

Vice President Brown asked how the shut-down of Carmen-Smith would affect the budget. 

Mr. Varner responded that EWEB had not put money away for the lost generation of the facility, but 

it had put money away for the capital costs.   

 

Commissioner Ernst asked if the high degree of uncertainty in power costs was driven by the 

cost of fossil fuel. Mr. Berggren replied that it was driven by the economy. Mr. Varner added that the 

marginal fuel was natural gas, most of the time, except when the hydroelectric facilities were 

operating. He said when the demand for natural gas was down, the price of natural gas went down 

and the price of electricity went down. He averred that as soon as the price of natural gas increased, 

the price of electricity would increase.  

 

President Farmer adjourned the Work Session at 6:27 p.m. 

 

 

 

________________________________  _______________________________________ 

 Assistant Secretary     President 

 

 



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 1 

EWEB Board Consent Calendar Request 
For Contract Awards, Renewals, and Increases 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new Price Agreement/Contract with Honey Bucket for Portable Toilet 
Services.   Backgrounder:  No  
 
Board Meeting Date:   7/21/09       

Project or Job Name: Portable Toilet Services, ITB 005-2009   

Project Contact: Rick Sitowski   Ext. 3969  

Purchasing Contact:  Tracy Davis   Ext. 3258  
 
Contract Amount: 
Original Contract Amount:  $ 75,000 (estimated $15,000/year) 

Additional $ Previously Approved: $      

Invoices over last approval:  $      

Percentage over last approval:     % 

Amount this Request:   $ 75,000     

Resulting Cumulative Total:  $ 75,000     
 
 
Contracting Method: 
Method of Solicitation:    Invitation to Bid – Intermediate Procurement 

If applicable, basis for exemption:   N/A    _____ 

Term of Agreement:  7/30/09 – 7/29/10  _____ 

Option to Renew? Yes.  Renewable annually for up to 5 years_ 

Approval for purchases “as needed” for the life of the contract Yes   

 

NARRATIVE: 
The Board is being asked to approve a new Price Agreement/Contract with Honey Bucket for Portable Toilet 
Services. 
 
EWEB utilizes portable toilets on an on-going basis at work sites and various permanent locations: two units at the 
Walterville Pond; one unit at the Leaburg Dam fish screens; two units at headquarters; and one mobile unit to be 
transported to job sites.  EWEB also utilizes portable units on an on-call basis for special events and at construction 
sites. 
 
In May 2009, three portable toilet service providers were invited to quote on providing Portable Toilet Services.  The 
quotations were evaluated and Honey Bucket provided the lowest responsive, responsible quote, meeting all of 
EWEB’s service requirements.   
  
This price agreement, if approved, will be for one year with an option, at EWEB’s discretion, to renew for four 
additional one-year periods (total potential contract term: 5 years).  Requirements have been established for six 
locations; however, additional service will be requested on an “as needed” basis for construction sites and special 
events.  Staff estimates that EWEB will have requirements for portable toilet services of approximately $15,000 
each year of the contract, a possible total amount of $75,000 over the five-year period.  However, this is a 
requirements contract (price agreement); the exact total amount of this contract is based “on need” and not on any 
specific dollar amount. 
 
All departments in the utility are eligible to use this contract if needed. 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Staff requests Board approve the contract award to Honey Bucket for Portable Toilet Services on an “as needed” 
basis.  Funding for these services is budgeted annually.  

Action Requested: 

X  Contract Award 
  Contract Renewal 
  Contract Increase 
  Other 

Funding Source: 

X  Budget 
  Reserves 
  New Revenue 
  Bonding 
  Other 

Form of Contract: 

  Single Purchase 
X  Services 
  Personal Services 
  Construction 
  IGA 
X  Price Agreement 
  Other 



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 2 

 
SIGNATURES: 
 
Project Coordinator:             
 
Supervisor:         
 
Purchasing Manager:       
 
Division Director:       
                                         
General Manager:        
                                             
Board Approval Date:        
 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary verification:        



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 1 

EWEB Board Consent Calendar Request 
For Contract Awards, Renewals, and Increases 
 
Backgrounder Yes (See Background dated June 29, 2009 from Joe Harwood, Public Affairs) 
 
Board Meeting Date:   July 21, 2009      

Project or Job Name: Walterville & Leaburg Canal Nutria Control   

Project Contact: Mark Zinniker   Ext. 3428  

Purchasing Contact: Gail Murray   Ext. 3254  
 
Contract Amount: 
Original Contract Amount:  $ 32,761     

Additional $ Previously Approved: $ 0     

Invoices over last approval:  $ 0     

Percentage over last approval:    0 % 

Amount this Request:   $ 32,761     

Resulting Cumulative Total:  $ 32,761     
 
 
Contracting Method: 
Method of Solicitation:    Request for Quotation   

If applicable, basis for exemption:        

Term of Agreement: July 22, 2009 – July 31, 2010   

Option to Renew?   Yes    

Approval for purchases “as needed” for the life of the contract No   

 
NARRATIVE: 

The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with Johnson Wildlife Services for Walterville and Leaburg 
Canal Nutria Control.   
 
In September 2008, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) conducted their annual dam safety 
inspection of the Leaburg and Walterville hydroelectric projects.  This inspection revealed nutria burrowing activity 
in several areas of the Walterville and Leaburg Power Canals. EWEB was mandated by the FERC to ensure that 
the power canal embankments are free of animal, specifically nutria, burrowing activities. The risks posed by animal 
burrows to canal embankments were highlighted in January 2008, when nearly 600 homes in Truckee, Nevada 
were flooded by a canal failure caused by animal burrows.  
 
In response to the FERC direction, staff requested quotations from three pest control firms listed with the Oregon 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) as experienced in nutria trapping and animal damage control work.   
Johnson Wildlife Service provided the most cost effective proposal of those requested and also provided a 
comprehensive plan to develop a safe and effective nutria control program. The control program will include a three 
stage process relying on a combination of archery, hunting and trapping. Johnson Wildlife Service is sensitive to 
and aware of the unique public notification and outreach requirements associated with this project. They will post 
and maintain signage throughout the project.   
 
The program will include public notification and outreach. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 

Staff requests Board approve a new contract with Johnson Wildlife Services for Walterville and Leaburg Canal 
Nutria Control Services.  Funds for these services were budgeted for 2009 and will be budgeted for 2010. 
  

Action Requested: 

x  Contract Award 
  Contract Renewal 
  Contract Increase 
  Other 

Funding Source: 

x  Budget 
  Reserves 
  New Revenue 
  Bonding 
  Other 

Form of Contract: 

  Single Purchase 
x  Services 
  Personal Services 
  Construction 
  IGA 
  Price Agreement 
  Other 



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 2 

 

SIGNATURES: 
 
Project Coordinator:             
 
Supervisor:         
 
Purchasing Manager:       
 
Division Director:       
                                         
General Manager:        
                                             
Board Approval Date:        
 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary verification:        



 

Revised 7-8-2009  Page 1 

EWEB Board Consent Calendar Request 
For Contract Awards, Renewals, and Increases 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with the Northwest Power Pool (NWPP) Corporation to 
provide North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) engineering and testing services. 

Backgrounder  No  
 
Board Meeting Date:   July 21, 2009    

Project Name/Contract#: NWPP General Services Agreement   

Project Contact:  Dean Ahlsten    Ext. 3210  

Purchasing Contact: Gail Murray   Ext. 3254  
 
Contract Amount: 
Original Contract Amount:   $ 60,000    

Additional $ Previously Approved:  $ __-     

Invoices over last approval:   $ __-     

Percentage over last approval:    - % 

Amount this Request:    $ 60,000    

Resulting Cumulative Total:   $ 60,000    

 

Contracting Method: 
Method of Solicitation:    Direct negotiation/Personal Services <$150k 

If applicable, basis for exemption:   EWEB Rule 6-0270    

Term of Agreement:  July 22, 2009 – July 31, 2010   

Option to Renew?  Yes      

Approval for purchases “as needed” for the life of the contract No   

 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with the Northwest Power Pool (NWPP) Corporation to 
provide North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) engineering and testing services. 
 
NWPP is a non-profit organization that serves as a forum in the electrical industry for reliability and operational 
adequacy issues in the Northwest. It is a voluntary organization comprised of major generating utilities serving the 
Northwestern U.S., British Columbia and Alberta.  At a recent meeting with the NWPP representatives, NERC 
compliance gaps were identified in the area of transmission planning. To become compliant, EWEB must perform a 
series of dynamic system simulations that document the performance of EWEB’s transmission system under a 
variety of outage scenarios.  
 
Staff currently does not have the resources (software) to perform the required system simulations.  The services of 
a qualified engineering firm with NERC regulatory compliance testing experience to bring EWEB transmission 
systems into compliance with NERC reliability standards is needed.  The NWPP has the required compliance 
experience, expertise in the utility industry and are able to perform the work before the end of the year.   NWPP’s 
status as a non-profit corporation enables them to be able to perform the work at a significantly lower cost than 
other consulting firms.   
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with the Northwest Power Pool (NWPP) Corporation to 
provide North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) engineering and testing services.  Funds for these 
services were budgeted for 2009.    

Action Requested: 

   X      Contract Award 
  Contract Renewal 
  Contract Increase 
  Other 

Funding Source: 

   X      Budget 
  Reserves 
  New Revenue 
  Bonding 
  Other 

Form of Contract: 

  Single Purchase 
  Services 
   X      Personal Services 
  Construction 
  IGA 
  Price Agreement 
  Other 



 

Revised 7-8-2009  Page 2 

 
SIGNATURES: 
 
Project Coordinator:             
 
Supervisor:         
 
Purchasing Manager:       
 
Division Director:       
                                         
General Manager:        
                                             
Board Approval Date:        
 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary verification:        
 



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 1 

EWEB Board Consent Calendar Request 
For Contract Awards, Renewals, and Increases 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with OBEC Consulting Engineers to provide design and 
construction engineering services for the Carmen Diversion Bridge Replacement project.   

Backgrounder:  No  
 
Board Meeting Date:   July 21, 2009      

Project or Job Name: Carmen Diversion Bridge Replacement   

Project Contact: Lara Hughey   Ext. 3228  

Purchasing Contact: Tracy Davis   Ext. 3258  
 
Contract Amount: 
Original Contract Amount:  $ 147,897    

Additional $ Previously Approved: $ -0-     

Invoices over last approval:  $ -0-     

Percentage over last approval:    -0- % 

Amount this Request:   $ 147,897    

Resulting Cumulative Total:  $ 147,897    
 
 
Contracting Method: 
Method of Solicitation:     Direct Negotiation   

If applicable, basis for exemption:  EWEB Rule 4-0200: <$150,000                               

Term of Agreement: Completion by December 31, 2010     

Option to Renew?  Yes     

Approval for purchases “as needed” for the life of the contract No    

 
NARRATIVE: 

 
The Board is being asked to approve a new contract with OBEC Consulting Engineers (OBEC) to provide design 
and construction engineering services for the Carmen Diversion Bridge Replacement project.  
 
The Carmen Diversion Bridge was built in the 1960s and provides access to EWEB’s Diversion Tunnel and Carmen 
Diversion Spillway, as well as provides public access to the McKenzie Trail.  The most recent inspection, performed 
in 2008, indicated that the bridge has reached its end-of-life and will not be able to carry construction vehicle traffic 
required for Carmen-Smith Relicensing.  Failing components include a negative camber in the girders, increasing 
scour at back walls, decayed wood deck and undersized pedestrian grating.  Because repairing each failing 
component will not increase the load carrying ability of the bridge, a complete replacement is necessary. 
   
The property is within the Carmen Smith project boundaries and is owned by the United State Forest Service 
(USFS), who will have significant input on design of bridge structure.  This project is necessary for the completion 
of upcoming Carmen-Smith Relicensing construction work at the Carmen Diversion site.  
 
This contract is for design and construction engineering of the Carmen Diversion Bridge.  OBEC has provided 
bridge engineering support for bridge design, repairs and renovations as well as inspections and load ratings to 
EWEB for over 40 years; they have in-depth knowledge of our bridges, and their maintenance and repair.   

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 

Staff requests Board approve a new contract with OBEC Consulting Engineers for the design and construction 
engineering services for the Carmen Diversion Bridge Replacement.  Funds for these services were budgeted for 
2009, and will be budgeted for 2010.  

Action Requested: 

X  Contract Award 
  Contract Renewal 
  Contract Increase 
  Other 

Funding Source: 

X  Budget 
  Reserves 
  New Revenue 
  Bonding 
  Other 

Form of Contract: 

  Single Purchase 
  Services 
X  Personal Services 
  Construction 
  IGA 
  Price Agreement 
  Other 



Revised 1-5-2009  Page 2 

 
 

 

SIGNATURES: 
 
Project Coordinator:             
 
Supervisor:         
 
Purchasing Manager:       
 
Division Director:       
                                         
General Manager:        
                                             
Board Approval Date:        
 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary verification:        



 

Revised 7-8-2009  Page 1 

EWEB Board Consent Calendar Request 
For Contract Awards, Renewals, and Increases 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new Services Contract with Peak Hydro Services for Carmen Smith 
turbine runner weld repairs.   
 
 Backgrounder  No  
 
Board Meeting Date:  July 21, 2009   

Project Name/Contract#: Carmen-Smith U1 Runner Repair / SC No. 032-2009 

Project Contact: Larry Billhartz   Ext. 3215  

Purchasing Contact: Quentin Furrow   Ext. 3287  
 
Contract Amount: 
Original Contract Amount:  $ 126,458    

Additional $ Previously Approved: $ -     

Invoices over last approval:  $ -     

Percentage over last approval:    - % 

Amount this Request:   $ 126,458    

Resulting Cumulative Total:  $ 126,458    
 
 
Contracting Method: 
Method of Solicitation:    Exemption     

If applicable, basis for exemption:  6-0150 Equipment Repair/Overhaul  

Term of Agreement: July 22, 2009 – November 13, 2009  

Option to Renew? No      

Approval for purchases “as needed” for the life of the contract No   

 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The Board is being asked to approve a new Services Contract with Peak Hydro Services for Carmen Smith 
turbine runner weld repairs.    
 
After over 25 years of operation, the Carmen Powerhouse #1 turbine requires cavitation weld repairs that cannot be 
adequately accessed and repaired while the runner is in place.  To help insure reliable operation, staff has 
negotiated a repair services contract with Peak Hydro Services to make the needed repairs at their shop in 
Springfield, Oregon.  Peak Hydro Services specializes in hydro turbine repair and is a division of Voith Hydro, the 
OEM of the turbines at the Carmen-Smith Project. 
 
EWEB staff will remove and transport the runner and discharge ring to and from the Contractor’s shop.  In addition 
to making the basic cavitation repairs in the areas already identified in the contract scope of work, the Contractor 
will check the hydraulic and dynamic balance of the turbine runner and further inspect the turbine.  Any additional 
needed repairs or rebalancing would be done on a time and materials basis at unit pricing established by the 
Contract. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 

Staff requests Board approve a new Services Contract with Peak Hydro Services for Carmen Smith turbine runner 
weld repairs.  Funds for this work were budgeted for 2009. 
 

 

Action Requested: 

X  Contract Award 
  Contract Renewal 
  Contract Increase 
  Other 

Funding Source: 

X  Budget 
  Reserves 
  New Revenue 
  Bonding 
  Other 

Form of Contract: 

  Single Purchase 
X  Services 
  Personal Services 
  Construction 
  IGA 
  Price Agreement 
  Other 



 

Revised 7-8-2009  Page 2 

SIGNATURES: 
 
Project Coordinator:             
 
Supervisor:         
 
Purchasing Manager:       
 
Division Director:       
                                         
General Manager:        
                                             
Board Approval Date:        
 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary verification:        


	CC1a  May 5 Work Session Minutes
	CC2 Honey Bucket 7-14-09
	CC3 Johnson Wildlife Services-Nutria Control 7-14-09
	CC4 Northwest Power Pool NWPP 7-14-09
	CC5 OBEC Engineering 7-8-09
	CC6 Peak Hydro_Generation_7-8-09

